
 
SPECIAL MUNICIPAL LAND USE BOARD MINUTES 

BOROUGH OF EMERSON 
August 20, 2020 

 
This meeting of the Emerson Land Use Board was held on “Gotomeeting.”   Land Use Chairman Bischoff opened the 
meeting at 7:30pm.  In compliance with the Open Public Meeting Act, the Clerk has notified The Record and The 
Ridgewood News of this meeting and notice has been posted in the Municipal Building. 
  
 
Roll call was taken: 
          Mayor DiPaola     Absent 
  Stephanie Clark     Absent 
               Councilwoman Jill McGuire     Present 

  Chairman Jeff Bischoff       Present 
  Vice-Chairman Gary Schwinder     Absent 
  Don Pierro     Absent  

  Mike Myers     Preent 
  Bill Loschiavo     Present 
  Paul Hulburt     Present 
  Michael Timmerman     Absent 
  Mike Cimino     Absent 
  Andy Sarkisian     Absent 
  Carl Carbo     Absent 
  Christopher Martin, LUB Attorney     Present 
  Caroline Reiter, Planner     Not Requested   
  David Atkinson, LUB Engineer     Not Requested 
  Richard, Silvia, CCO/Zoning     Not Requested 
  Perry Solimando, DPW Interim Super.     Not Requested 
  Borough Administrator, Richard Hermansen    Not Requested 
  Marie Shust, Secretary     Present 
 
 

Chairman Bischoff asked if there were any comments or changes for the minutes of the meeting of August 6, 2020...  
Hearing none he asked for a motion to approve and publish the minutes, which was made by Mr. Loschiavo, second 
was offered by Mr. Myers.  Chairman Bischoff, Mr. Loschiavo & Mr. Myers voted to approve the minutes for 
publication. 
 
Correspondence, Vouchers: 
 
Ms. Shust was asked to read the vouchers that had been received since the last meeting: 
 

20-Aug-20 

8/4/2020 20-01045 Zindel 
Additional Escrow 
Refund  $      75.00  

8/4/2020 20-01028 Shust Gotomeeting charges  $      38.00  
10-Aug 20-01069 Morrison Mahoney Fringuello application  $    322.82  
10-Aug 20-01069 Morrison Mahoney Trinity Rehab  $    731.00  
10-Aug 20-01069 Morrison Mahoney Shah Residence  $   279.50  
10-Aug 20-01069 Morrison Mahoney Monchino Residence  $    301.00  

5-Aug 20-01046 Morrison Mahoney Obernauer, Valero  $    798.98  
5-Aug 20-01046 Morrison Mahoney Nicholas Karathomas  $    365.50  

 $ 2,911.80  
 
Mr. Hulburt made a motion to approve these vouchers for payment, second was offered by Councilwoman McGuire.   
Councilwoman McGuire, Chairman Bischoff, Mr. Loschiavo, Mr. Myers and Mr. Hulbert voted to approve the 
vouchers. 
 
 
 



 

6-Aug 20-01057 Morrison Mahoney 

General Matters, Re 
Exam, LUB fees, 
Codification  $ 1,984.00  
Ordinances 

5-Aug 20-01046 Morrison Mahoney Redevelopment  $    150.50  

 $ 2,134.50  

 
Mr. Loschiavo made a motion to approve these vouchers for payment, second was offered by Mr. Myers.  Chairman 
Bischoff, Mr. Loschiavo, Mr. Myers and Mr. Hulbert voted to approve the vouchers.  Due to the nature of the charges, 
Councilwoman McGuire abstained. 
 
RESOLUTIONS: 
  
 None 
  
APPLICATIONS: 
 
 Verrico Residence,  50 Lexington Ave, block 101, Lot 4, Request for a variance to install a 6 ft. fence on 
their corner property. 
 
Lindsay and Joe Verrico introduced themselves to the Board and replied to Mr. Martin’s questions regarding their 
property and request, and stated that their notices are satisfactory. 
 
Chairman Bischoff made the following statements which were confirmed by Joe and Lindsay. 
 The property is a corner lot where you are requesting permission to install a 6 foot fence. 
 This a single family home 
 The fence will be a 6 foot white vinyl. 
 
He asked the reason for the request.  Lindsay replied they have three small children, who they would like to be to 
keep safe in the yard, as well as keeping animals out. 
 
The Chair turned to the Board to see if there were any questions.  Mr. Loschiavo expressed concern about the 
sightline and wanted to be sure the fence did not interfere with traffic. 
 
Mr. Martin asked if there were any setback variances required.  Lindsay replied no.  When asked if the fence was 
consistent with the neighborhood, she replied yes.  She added that she felt her children would be safer with the 
fencing to keep out the deer and they wouldn’t have to worry about the droppings. 
 
Mr. Myers made a motion to open the floor to the public on this matter only, second was offer by Mr. Loschiavo, all 
were in favor.  Seeing no hands from the public, Mr. Loschiavo made a motion to close the floor to the public, second 
by Councilwoman McGuire, all were in favor. 
 
Councilwoman McGuire made a motion to approve the application for a 6 foot fence, second was offered by Mr. 
Loschiavo.  Councilwoman McGuire, Chairman Bischoff, Mr. Loschiavo, Mr. Myers and Mr. Hulbert voted to approve 
the application. 
 
The Chair told Joe and Lindsay that could apply for their permit at their convenience.  He would waive the wait for the 
Resolution and advise the Building Dept. 
 
 Stathakis Residence, 55 Dyer St., Block 53, Lot 6  Remove existing patio, build a deck.   The property has 
a pre-existing side yard variance, and non-conforming lot size variance.   A new rear setback variance is requested 
as well as exceeding maximum building coverage. 
 
Joan and George Stathakis introduced themselves to the Board and answered the questions put forth by Mr. Martin.  
Mr. Martin stated that the mailing notices are satisfactory. 
 
Chairman Bischoff advised the Board that most of the lots on the East side of Dyer are non-conforming in depth, 
which usually results in needing a variance.  This particular lot is 83 ft. deep rather than the required 100 ft., which 
results in variances needed when adding to a home, adding a deck or even a fence. 



 
The Chair asked if the existing patio had been removed.  George replied no, as they are waiting for the decision of 
the Board and would like to have all the work done at one time.    
 
Chairman Bischoff continued that the addition would be for the comfort and safety of their family, to which George 
replied yes.   George said the deck would be even with the door on the back of the house, and there would be no 
“flood” lighting,   When asked if these would be an asset to the neighborhood, Joan replied yes.     Mr. Martin asked if 
they saw this addition as a detriment to the neighborhood, Joan replied no, it would be an asset, and was consistent 
with other decks in the area.   Chairman Bischoff stated the property was well screened and would not interfere with 
the lifestyles of the neighbors. 
 
There were no other questions from the Board members,   the Chair asked for a motion to open the floor on this 
application only.  Councilwoman Mc Guiro made a motion to open the floor to the public, second was made by Mr. 
Loschiavo.  Seeing no hands from the public, Councilwoman Mc Guire made a motion to close the floor, second was 
offered by Mr. Loschiavo, all were in favor. 
 
Chairman Bischoff made a motion to approve the application to add a deck on the dwelling at 55 Dyer St., second 
was offered by Councilwoman McGuire.   Councilwoman McGuire, Chairman Bischoff, Mr. Loschiavo, Mr. Myers and 
Mr. Hulbert voted to approve the application.’ 
 
The Chairman advised Mr.& Mr. Stathakis that they could also apply for their permit as wel.  He would advise the 
Building Dept. that their application had been approved. 
  
OPEN TO PUBLIC:  
 
The Chairman made a motion to open the floor to the public on any matter, Mr.Hulbert offered a second, and all were 
in favor.   Seeing no public in attendance, Mr. Loschiavo made a motion to close the floor, second was offered by Mr. 
Hulbert, all were in favor. 
 
BOARD BUSINESS: 
 
Recodification 
The Chairman asked for any comments on the Recodification recommendations as presented.   Seeing no hands he 
asked for a motion to forward the recommendations to the Governing Body, Mr. Hulbert made the motion, second 
was offered by Mr. Myers.   Chairman Bischoff, Mr.  Loschiavo, Mr. Myers, & Mr. Hulbert voted yes. 
 
Mr. Martin asked if the Chair wanted a Resolution for the recommendations, or if the Secretary would compose a 
letter of recommendation.  The Chair opted for the letter.    Mr. Martin asked that a copy be sent to him before it went 
to the Governing Body. 
 
ANY BOARD MEMBER: 
 
Mr. Loschiavo stated as he was teaching his stepson how to drive, he found many intersections that are overgrown 
causing a sightline problem. He especially noticed it on Clinton at both ends. He wanted to know where to direct his 
concerns.  Ms. Shust told him there is a Property Maintenance Officer in the Building Dept. and his concerns should 
be directed there.   The Chair told him to reach out to Patty.. 
 
The Chair mentioned the wonderful job the DPW did for the cleanup after the storm.   He was happy to see there was 
minimal damage. 
 
Mr. Martin stated that after 16 years forming and expanding Morrison-Mahoney he has decided to make a change 
and will now be associated with a firm at 130 Main St., Hackensack. 
 
He told the Chair he would prepare a resolution for the Board to appoint the new firm as the firm representing the 
Land Use Board. 
 
Since there was no further business, the Chair wished everyone well, then asked for a motion to adjourn the meeting 
which was made Mr. Loschiavo, second was offered by Mr. Hulbert, all were in favor. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:06 pm. 
Respectfully submitted, 
M. Marie Shust, Board Secretary 


